ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 8, 2005
8:37 a.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senat or G et chen CGuess

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or CGene Therri aul t

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SELECT COW TTEE ON LEGQ SLATI VE ETHI CS
Confirmation Hearing: Dennis “Skip” Cook

CONFI R(VATI ON' ADVANCED
SENATE BI LL NO. 67
"An Act relating to clains for personal injury or wongful death
against health care providers; and providing for an effective
date."

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 67

SHORT TI TLE: CLAI MS AGAI NST HEALTH CARE PROVI DERS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) SEEKI NS

01/ 21/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 05 (S) L&C, JUD

02/ 08/ 05 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 08/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 08/ 05 (S) M NUTE (L&C)

03/ 01/ 05 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 01/ 05 (S) Moved SB 67 Qut of Conmittee
03/ 01/ 05 (S) M NUTE (L&C)

03/ 02/ 05 (S) L&C RPT 3DP 1DNP

03/ 02/ 05 (S) DP: BUNDE, SEEKINS, STEVENS B
03/ 02/ 05 (S) DNP: ELLIS

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 8, 2005



03/ 08/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
W TNESS REG STER

M. Denni s Cook

Fai r banks, AK 99501

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Confirmation Candidate to the Select
Committee on Legislative Ethics.

M. Rol and Gower, Surgeon
Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 67

M. Paul Dillon

Dillon & Findley

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 67

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:37:23 AM Present were Senators
Hollis French, Charlie Huggins, Getchen Guess, and Chair Ral ph
Seeki ns.

Confirmati on Hearing — Sel ect Committee on Legislative Ethics

8:38:10 AM

The previous link <contains an interview by the Judiciary
Comm ttee of Dennis “Skip” Cook who was up for reappointnent to
the Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics.

SENATOR CHARLIE HUGEA NS noved to forward Dennis Cook’s
recommendation by the Judiciary Commttee to the Senate floor
Hearing no objections, the notion carried.

9:11: 56 AM
SB 67- CLAI M5 AGAI NST HEALTH CARE PROVI DERS

9:17:48 AM
MR. BRI AN HOVE, staff to Senator Seekins, presented SB 67, which
anends AS 09.55 by adding a new section. The section places a

$250,000 |imt on non-econonc danage awards for healthcare
provi ders who render services. SB 67 intends to alleviate a
growng crisis in Alaska’s healthcare industry. Medi cal

mal practice insurance conpanies find Al aska uneconom c and have
|l eft the market. This has created higher rates across the board.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 8, 2005



Every Al askan needi ng nedical care pays added costs. There is
also a critical shortage of physicians in Al aska. Over half of
Al aska’ s physicians exceed the age of 50. It is difficult to
recruit doctors when other states have capped non-econonic
damages at or near $250, 000.

Bottom line, Alaska is viewed as an wundesirable place for
medi cal insurance carriers to do business. As a result, fewer
physicians open clinics here. Qher states have effectively
pl aced an wupper |imt on non-econom c damage awards, thereby
providing a stable, predictable, insurable climte. SB 67 does
not alter awards for quantifiable damages, such as |ost wages
and nedical expenses, and does not affect awards for gross
negl i gence or reckl ess behavi or.

9:21:19 AM

SENATOR FRENCH stated that current law differentiates between
pain and suffering |osses for sonme injuries that are inflicted
through negligence and there is a differentiation for severe
physical inpairnment. He asked M. Hove if SB 67 differentiates
in the sane manner.

MR HOVE believed SB 67 did not differenti ate.

SENATOR FRENCH asked M. Hove why the decision was nade to not
address the differentiation.

MR. HOVE stated the intent of SB 67 was to make the insurance
mar ket nore attracti ve.

9:22:49 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked M. Hove the nunber of states that have a
$250, 000 cap.

MR HOVE answered 10.

SENATOR FRENCH pointed to page 3, lines 11-14, which lists
i nstances that qualify for conpensation for non-econom c | osses.
He asked if those would still be recoverable under SB 67 but be

limted to $250, 000.

9:.24:27 AM
MR. HOVE agr eed.

SENATOR FRENCH stated under SB 67 one can sue for |oss of

enjoynent of life (page 3, line 13) but one cannot sue for
hedoni ¢ damages. He asked M. Hove to explain the difference.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 8, 2005



MR. HOVE deferred the question

9:25: 36 AM
SENATOR QGQUESS asked M. Hove how the sponsor decided on
$250, 000.

MR HOVE replied the current limt is $400,000. The intent is to
provide relief and encourage conpetition in the marketpl ace.

SENATOR (@QUESS asked M. Hove which states have | oner
doctor/patient ratios than Al aska.

MR. HOVE did not know.

9:30: 18 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS provided a list of states that have a cap of
$250,000 to conmittee nenbers. They include California, Kansas,
Mont ana, Chio, Texas, and West Virginia. SB 67 is not suggesting
to short fund proper nedical care.

9:32:44 AM

DR. ROLAND GOVER, surgeon, a nenber of the board of directors of
Al aska Physicians and Surgeons and chief of staff at Alaska
Regi onal Hospital, testified in support of SB 67. He expressed
concern with the lack of nedical access and stated it affects
all Al askans. Lack of mal practice insurance will cause a crisis.
Alaska has two insurance conpanies that offer liability
i nsurance. They are both physician run boards out of California
and they are not-for-profit conpanies. During a fee crisis in
the | ate 1980s, prem uns rose to $100, 000.

DR. GOVER commented his premiumis currently up 12 percent over
| ast year and has doubled since 2001. One conpany has limted
the type and extent of the policies it is witing for sone
practitioners. In the past, costs were passed on to the patient
but today the preferred provider contracts limt the ability to
rai se physicians’ rates. 1In Florida, neurosurgeons, cardiac
surgeons and OBGYN surgeons are paying over $200,000 a year for
liability insurance. The trend in Alaska is toward higher
prem uns.

9: 38:43 AM

DR. GOVWER renmarked half of the nedical doctors in Alaska are
over 50 and towards the end of their careers. Many would retire
tomorrow if insurance availability ceased. Recruiting new

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 8, 2005



doctors is difficult because of this issue. California brought
stability by putting a cap on non-econom c danages.

9:41: 37 AM

DR. GOVNER remarked he does not see society |ooking at other
solutions such as nmandatory arbitration, a review board to | ook
at suits, limting attorney fees, and/ or mal - occurrence
i nsurance where patients buy insurance. SB 67 wll provide
predictability and stability to the insurance conpanies that
practice in Al aska.

9:43: 49 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked Dr. Gower to comment on whet her Al aska needs
better doctors.

DR. GOWER declared he is inpressed with the current |evel of
medi cal care that Al askans have access to.

9:45: 17 AM
SENATOR HUGG NS asked Dr. Gower if there is a policing nechanism
within the industry to police questionable practitioners.

DR GOWNER explained the nulti-tiered process of achieving
credenti al s.

9:49: 20 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked whet her the Al aska State Medical Board did
t he oversi ght.

DR. GONER explained a physician needs a state license to
practice but hospital privileges are not automatic.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked Dr. Gower whether the rise in rates 1is
based on the effectiveness of the doctor or on a pool.

DR. GOVER answered it is based on pooled risks. Specialists are
in a higher risk category than non-specialists.

9:51: 47 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the trend is toward out of court
settl enents.

DR. GOVER affirned that settling mal practice clains out-of-court
is the best way to save on additional attorney fees.

9:54: 13 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 8, 2005



SENATOR GUESS asked Dr. Gower if the legislature should |ook at
t he process of renoving a physician from practice.

DR GOWER stated he has never served on the state nedical
| i censing board but has served on the credential conmttee of
both hospitals in Anchorage. There is a fine line in attenpting
to renobve a physician who is practicing bad nedicine. It 1is
al nost always inplied that conpetition is the main factor for
renmoving a physician. The bylaws are set up so that multiple
hearings and nultiple reviews nust occur before taking a
physician’s hospital privileges away. He stated the process
wor ks.

9:58: 18 AM
SENATOR GUESS asked Dr. Gower to coment on why the public
doesn’t want to consider any other solutions.

DR. GOVER said he did not nean to inply the public wouldn’t want
to look to other solutions. He stated the issues are conplex and
the magjority of the public does not conprehend the various ways
the problem can be solved. Solutions are out there but they are
not in the hands of the physicians or the public. Solutions are
in the hands of partisan legislation and various interest
groups. He said 40 percent of insurance prem uns end up going to
t he attorneys.

10: 01: 39 AM
SENATOR GUESS clarified Dr. Gower neant 40 percent of prem uns,
not payouts.

DR. GOVER agr eed.

SENATOR GUESS asked Dr. Gower to conment on the percentage of
his premuns to the overall increase of his other costs.

DR. GOVWER conmented in 1988, his prem um costs were close to 18
percent  of his total revenue. Rei nbur senent  of nmedi ci ne
nationwi de is down significantly.

SENATOR GUESS asked if he was seeing his other costs increase at
the sane rate

DR. GOVER answer ed yes.

10: 03: 41 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS commented that Florida has a $500,000 cap that can
be increased to $1 mllion under certain circunstances. He said

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 8, 2005



sone nenbers of the Judiciary Conmttee are |ooking to address
the huge anmount of litigation costs of nedical nalpractice
claimts. He asked Dr. Gower if he or any of his colleagues
considered an arbitration step and speedier resolution where
nore noney goes to the person injured.

DR. GOWNER answered it has been tal ked about but no one thinks it
will ever happen. He stated it nmkes sense to have a review
process before a lawsuit is filed. It only takes $75. Once the
lawsuit is filed it costs noney and tinme. One can file a |lawsuit
wi t hout consulting a nedical expert to see if the case is valid.
He said mal practice cases are a lot |like divorce cases where the
attorneys nake nore noney the |onger the issue stays unresol ved.

10: 08: 41 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS pointed out the conmttee received a docunent
yesterday fromthe Al aska Action Trust.

10: 09: 01 AM

MR. PAUL DILLON, attorney, Dllon & Findley, testified in
opposition to SB 67. He primarily represents insurance conpani es
and al so physicians. SB 67 attenpts to create a market conducive
to insurers. He referenced the 66'" annual report from the
Division of Insurance (DO), and conpared it with past reports.
The DA produced a report on the annual effects of nedical
mal practice legislation. He said his testinony woul d be bal anced
on various journals and press rel eases.

10: 11: 53 AM

MR. DILLON said SB 67 is based on the premise of a crisis in
Al aska. The circunstances of the crisis are not born from bad
nmedi cal care. Al aska has a tiny insurance market. NORCAL Mitua
| nsurance Conpany and Medical Indemity Corporation of Al aska
(MCA) control 80 percent of the insurance market. Everyone el se
is small tinme. Wthin the insurance market, a series of tort
reform efforts began in the ‘70s. The Ilast one in 1997
culmnated in a $400,000 cap. Under AS 09.55.530, a panel of
physi ci ans was set up to review nmal practice clains. The panel is
designed to review nedical nalpractice clains prior to a court
process. The purpose of the panel is to review and anal yze cases
quickly and to avoid wunnecessary lawsuits. The panel is
routinely waived by the defense. The insurance defense bar does
not use the panel. He does not know why.

10: 15: 57 AM
SENATOR HUGE NS asked M. Dillon to describe the function of the
panel and the authority |evel.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 8, 2005



MR. DILLON recalled its function is to review the issue of
medi cal negligence and causation of damages and to render a
report based on the two issues. It is designed to be a tool to
weed out the frivolous cases and to provide a Ilevel of
protection to the nedical field by preventing unnecessary cases
going to court.

SENATOR HUGGE NS thought if the panel ruled the lawsuit is
unnecessary, it would stop the process.

MR DILLON replied it was ultimately the plaintiff’'s call.

10:17: 30 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS renmar ked the panel seened to have no authority.

MR. DILLON offered the panel carries great weight due to the
evidentiary value. A nedical mal practice case is one of the nost
expensive cases a plaintiff’s |lawer has. They are expensive and
time consuming. In his office the malpractice |awers screen
hundreds of cases each year and take |less than 10 percent of
them on. Cases are screened based on doctor’s reviews. The case
has to have the support of the nedical profession behind it.

10: 19: 14 AM

MR. DI LLON declared the availability of insurance and the costs
of premiuns are presently acceptable. Data from the DA shows
nmedical premuns have declined over the last 13 years. He
alleged the DA is not aware of any crisis in the insurance
i ndustry.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked M. Dillon if he is famliar with the nature
of the insurance conpanies he referred to.

MR. DI LLON al | uded Dr. Gower described themcorrectly.

CHAIR SEEKINS cl arified they were described as nutual conpanies.
He comrented if they had increased |osses they would pass that
on to their nenbers.

MR. DI LLON agr eed.

CHAIR SEEKINS asserted a crisis mght be indicated in increased
prem uns.

MR. DI LLON agreed but said there haven't been any.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 8, 2005



CHAIR SEEKINS comrented Dr. Gower testified his premuns have
i ncreased 12 percent.

MR. DILLON stated anyone could play with nunbers to get the
results they want.

10: 23: 33 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS said everyone has a different definition of the
word “crisis.”

MR. DI LLON disagreed and naintained there is no crisis in the
i nsurance industry. Medical schools are predicting huge nationa
shortfalls of physicians by 2020.

CHAI R SEEKI NS agreed, but stated that physicians who are high in
demand can choose to practice in states where the liability is
| ess.

MR. DI LLON said Alaska’'s insurance issues are no different than
any place in the Lower 48.

10: 25: 51 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS referred to the Alaska Action Trust information
and said deterring malpractice is the best way to bring down
costs and protect famlies.

MR. DI LLON agreed deterring nalpractice lawsuits is in the best
i nterest of everyone.

CHAI R SEEKINS indicated there was nore room for inprovenent in
terms of rising costs of insurance.

10: 27: 15 AM
MR. DILLON disagreed. He stated the rise in insurance prem uns
is an internal situation with the doctors.

10: 28: 58 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS said everyone benefits if neritorious cases are
settled in the proper manner.

10: 30: 22 AM

CHAI R SEEKINS announced SB 67 would carry over to the next
committee neeting.

There being no further business to come before the conmttee,
Chair Seekins adjourned the neeting at 10: 30:45 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 8, 2005



